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          2                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Welcome to our

          3  hearing of the Governmental Operations Committee

          4  regarding Intro No. 128.

          5                 Intro No. 128 is a bill whose purpose

          6  is to make retaliation against an employee for

          7  testifying at a City Council hearing a criminal

          8  offense.

          9                 Intro No. 128 deals with anyone

         10  appearing before the Council. The protected parties

         11  are, therefore, brought under the Whistleblower Law,

         12  which officers and employers of the City and under

         13  Federal Civil Rights Law, which are historically

         14  protected classes based on an individual's race,

         15  color, religion, sex, or national origin.

         16                 Additionally, the enforcement

         17  mechanism for Intro No. 128 is to make such an

         18  offense a Class A misdemeanor.

         19                 Section 29 of the New York City

         20  Charter sets forth the Council's investigatory power

         21  and oversight responsibilities. Intro 128 would

         22  create a new subdivision C of section 29 of the

         23  Charter. Paragraph two of such subdivision mandates

         24  that no person may retaliate against someone for

         25  their actual or proposed appearance before or
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          2  attendance at a hearing of the Council.

          3                 Retaliation can come in the form of

          4  threats, intimidation, or adverse actions at one's

          5  place of employment. Violation of this subdivision

          6  will constitute a Class A misdemeanor and shall be

          7  punishable by a fine of $750 and/or imprisonment not

          8  to exceed one year.

          9                 I should point out that this

         10  Committee on March 29th, held an Oversight Hearing

         11  entitled The Glass Ceiling: Is There Diverse and

         12  Equal Opportunity at all Levels of New York City's

         13  Work Force? Several issues were examined concerning

         14  discrimination in City hiring raised by lawsuits and

         15  several reports on diversity and equal opportunity

         16  within the City's work force. At such hearing, many

         17  witnesses expressed the concern that although

         18  illegal, they would be retaliated against upon their

         19  return to work. Some witnesses even suggested that

         20  others who had similarly spoken out about such

         21  offenses had lost their jobs.

         22                 This particular Introduction,

         23  however, stems from the fact that in September of

         24  1999, the Department of Sanitation awarded a $4.2

         25  million contract to Rapid Demolition Company to
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          2  dismantle the Department of Sanitation Manhattan

          3  garage 4, 4A and 7, a sanitation garage at 650 West

          4  57th Street. The first phase of the contract,

          5  asbestos removal, was carried out by High Tech

          6  Environmental, an affiliate of Rapid. The demolition

          7  phase started in March of 2002.

          8                 A scaffolding collapse at the site on

          9  June 12, 2002, prompted the Department of

         10  Investigation into allegations that the collapse was

         11  due to negligence on Rapid's part. DOI issued a

         12  report of its findings on July 18, 2000. The report

         13  raised serious questions regarding Rapid's

         14  responsibility as a contractor for the City of New

         15  York.

         16                 On October 18, 2002, the Council's

         17  Committee on Oversight and Investigations and the

         18  Committee on Sanitation and Solid Waste Management

         19  held a joint Oversight Hearing to review the issues

         20  surrounding the scaffolding collapse and ensuing DOI

         21  report. At such hearing, it became clear that

         22  witnesses were being intimidated and threatened for

         23  bringing complaints against Rapid and testifying at

         24  Council hearings.

         25                 On January 29, 2003, the Council

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  addressed similar concerns by passing Local Law 10

          3  of 2003 to enhance protection for whistleblowers.

          4  Local Law 10 expanded the entities under the purview

          5  of the Whistleblower Law and created more detailed

          6  remedial actions, including the restoration of an

          7  employee or officer to their former position.

          8                 This particular bill is primarily

          9  sponsored by Council Member Quinn who will be coming

         10  here shortly to make some remarks on the bill. This

         11  is a very, very important bill for those of us at

         12  the City Council. We have very often very

         13  controversial hearings, very pointed hearings. We

         14  want to make sure that those who have the civic

         15  sense of responsibility and commitment to good

         16  government do not feel in any way whatsoever

         17  intimidated by the opportunity to present themselves

         18  as a witness. No matter what side they may take on

         19  this case. This is fundamental to the hearing

         20  process that we are engaged in at the City Council.

         21  It is fundamental. Therefore, to a development of

         22  laws, it is therefore fundamental to what we in this

         23  Committee like to see as our responsibility of

         24  ensuring good government.

         25                 At this point, without further a due,
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          2  before I introduce you to the prime sponsor of the

          3  legislation, what I'd like to do is just acknowledge

          4  the members of the Committee that are here. Starting

          5  first with our Majority Whip and the Chair of Rules

          6  Privileges and Elections, Leroy Comrie. Next to him

          7  is the Counsel to the Committee, Matthew Tollin. I

          8  want to acknowledge the support of our Policy

          9  Analyst, Jonathan Ettricks. I want to also

         10  acknowledge our new Press Secretary, Maria Averrada

         11  (phonetic) for her support. Now at this point, I

         12  want to acknowledge the presence of our Chairwoman

         13  of the Health Committee, Christine Quinn and prime

         14  sponsor of Intro No. 128.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you very

         16  much, Mr. Chair. I want to first apologize. I'm

         17  going to be jumping back and forth because we're

         18  having a Joint Hearing of the Mental Health and

         19  Health Committee next door. I chair the Health

         20  Committee. So, I'm going to be jumping back and

         21  forth. I also want to thank the Chair and the

         22  Council, Matt Tollin for moving this hearing back a

         23  little bit so we could not have overlapped. But, of

         24  course, the best laid plans, the hearing that was in

         25  the chambers before ran late. So, Health and Mental
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          2  Health started late. We will all just do our best.

          3  But thank you very much for being flexible and for

          4  scheduling the hearing today.

          5                 I think as the Chair said, the

          6  genesis of this bill was really in response to a

          7  hearing the Council had about the Rapid Demolition

          8  Company and also a hearing we had had regarding the

          9  contract that the United Federation of Teachers were

         10  attempting to get with the United Cerebral Palsy.

         11                 Following the hearing on Rapid

         12  Demolition, were some members of the mason tender

         13  union very bravely came and testified and told us

         14  how they had not been paid. Told us about dangerous

         15  and unsafe working conditions on the job. After they

         16  left this hearing, after they really very bravely

         17  came forward and told us their stories, they went

         18  home and got messages after messages by the fore

         19  person on the job. And that gentlemen and his

         20  messages was very clear. That he would try to get

         21  those individuals deported. That he was going to

         22  threaten them and their family with physical harm. I

         23  mean, he was completely clear that their speaking

         24  out would cost them. And if they spoke anymore, it

         25  would cost them more.
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          2                 My office and the union went with

          3  those workers to the Police to try to get this man

          4  punished for really his outrageous behavior. I

          5  assumed that we would be able to press charges,

          6  harassment, threatening, et cetera. But that we

          7  would also be able to press charges because this

          8  individual had tampered with a government witness. I

          9  assumed that it would be as it would be if these

         10  gentlemen had been witnesses in a court of law.

         11                 I was wrong. There were no extra

         12  penalty. No additional charges for tampering with a

         13  witness in the City Council. It wasn't obstruction

         14  of justice. It wasn't anything as it might be if

         15  this was a court room. This bill was in response to

         16  that. To try to send a message to bosses and others

         17  who have done wrong. That if they threaten Council

         18  witnesses, if they intimidate them, we are going to

         19  come after them in the court of law making sure

         20  they're charged an extra time for trying to not

         21  allow the truth to be told.

         22                 In the case of the United Cerebral

         23  Palsy, we had workers who were terrified they would

         24  lose their job. That they would be demoted. So this

         25  bill not only speaks to criminal charges and
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          2  criminal and threatening and harassing behavior, but

          3  also to other power and control situations. To

          4  places where bosses or others might seek to hurt

          5  people by demoting them. By changing their hours. By

          6  firing them. Where they would seek to limit their

          7  ability to tell the truth by hurting them in their

          8  pocketbook. And this bill when it becomes law will

          9  also make that a punishable offense. So, I want to

         10  thank the workers really who were brave enough to

         11  take the steps that led us to see this omission in

         12  the administrative code and look forward to this

         13  becoming a law. It will be easier for people to come

         14  forward and testify and easier to punish those who

         15  seek to prevent people from speaking the truth.

         16  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         18  much, Councilwoman for this bill and for taking the

         19  time to come here and share with us the significance

         20  of this bill, the genesis of this bill. I have to

         21  take a moment to apologize to you because I had

         22  wanted this to be in the context of a hearing that I

         23  had as you know as it relates to diversity. But in

         24  fact, while that was well intended, the real genesis

         25  of this bill should be and is as you just described
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          2  it in terms of those victims of harassment, et

          3  cetera, that came to you for help. It is a

          4  compliment to you and a compliment to this body in

          5  general that when people feel victimized, that they

          6  find some body with whom they can relate and to whom

          7  they can bring their case and it be properly

          8  identified and properly heard.

          9                 I thank you for helping us to

         10  rephrase this hearing in the way that it should be

         11  and thank you for more importantly developing this

         12  bill so that we can be in the forefront of what I

         13  believe is a very, very important protection for

         14  workers and for those who have the courage and the

         15  civic responsibility to appear before this City

         16  Council.

         17                 I want to at this time acknowledge

         18  the presence of Michael Nelson and we will also be

         19  joined by other members of the Committee who are in

         20  other hearings. I know that Council Member Phil Reed

         21  is next door at the Health Committee Hearing that

         22  you're chairing. At this point, however, we're going

         23  to go right to the witnesses. Our first set of

         24  witnesses are, the political Director of Mason

         25  Tenders District Council, Mike McGuire. From the
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          2  United Federation of Teachers, Carmen Alvarez and

          3  from the United Cerebral Palsy, a worker by the name

          4  of Ilene Weinerman. And then from Local 79, Charles

          5  Ryvkiewicz. Of course, our good friend and labor

          6  activist, Ed Ott. Please join us.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please raise

          8  your right hand. Do you solemnly swear or affirm

          9  that the testimony about to give is the truth, the

         10  whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         11                 MR. OTT: I do.

         12                 MR. RYNKIEWICZ: I do.

         13                 MS. WEINERMAN: I do.

         14                 MS. ALVAREZ: I do.

         15                 MR. MCGUIRE: I do.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         17  Could you before testifying state your name and who

         18  you are affiliated with.

         19                 MS. ALVAREZ: Good afternoon,

         20  everyone. My name is Carmen Alvarez. I am Vice

         21  President of the United Federation of Teachers for

         22  Special Education. On behalf of the President, Randi

         23  Weingarten, and the Union's 150,000 members, I want

         24  to thank the Committee for the invitation to appear

         25  here today. I don't have my testimony but I will
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          2  forward the testimony within the next couple of

          3  weeks.

          4                 Your proposed legislation, Intro No.

          5  128, sends a powerful message to people who work for

          6  the City. They need to know that they can speak up

          7  with impunity when they see problems. I am here to

          8  speak on behalf of the teachers, paraprofessionals,

          9  psychologists and other personnel who work with the

         10  City's most fragile and at-risk students in special

         11  education classes. The members I represent care

         12  deeply for the children they teach. But they are

         13  frustrated. They witness violations every day. But

         14  many, most are afraid to speak out.

         15                 Let me explain. Surveys by the UFT

         16  and other agencies reveal rampant violations of

         17  special educations regulations governing our

         18  students. The mandates of individualized education

         19  programs, IEP's are being changed illegally. Student

         20  services required by law are being ignored.

         21  Specified group size is being disregarded. And we

         22  referrals are not being acted upon.

         23                 The Department of Ed reorganization

         24  of special education is responsible for this chaos.

         25  It is hurting kids. When the DOE eliminated ed
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          2  evaluators and special ed supervisors, professionals

          3  who knew the rules, they reduced a three person

          4  evaluation team to one person. The psychologists are

          5  doing it all now and they haven't been able to keep

          6  up.

          7                 There is an enormous backlog of

          8  evaluations and these assessment professionals are

          9  being pressured to flex assessment and not request

         10  specialized assessments that they may have to be

         11  contracted out or do no assessments at all.

         12  Otherwise, they will be written up. Regions 4, 6, 10

         13  have issued memos setting quotas for IEP's. And

         14  Regions 1, 7 and 5, letters for the file have been

         15  written on the same topic. Classroom teachers are

         16  being penalized for requesting tools, materials or

         17  staff development to support what they need to do

         18  their jobs properly.

         19                 I learned of this the hard way when a

         20  teacher complained to me that she did not have

         21  specific materials she decided that she needed. And

         22  was not given then when she requested them at the

         23  beginning at the year. I brought this request to the

         24  regional office expecting the material would be

         25  supplied. Instead, the teacher was harassed by the
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          2  lead instructional supervisor. Walked into her

          3  office and said, why did you complain to the union?

          4  And what happened was that she went to the principal

          5  and the principal ended up showing her a memorandum

          6  that I had sent to request this material. Now they

          7  are very terrified to ask for additional help.

          8                 We all know that our educators have

          9  been blowing the whistle loud and clear. But many

         10  and most are afraid. While they desperately want to

         11  put an end to this comprise of the process, many and

         12  most will not allow their names to be used. They

         13  have seen too much of the harassment, humiliation,

         14  unsatisfactory ratings and other penalties visited

         15  upon them for those who speak. Our un-tenured

         16  teachers feel especially intimidated and threatened

         17  with the loss of their jobs.

         18                 The UFT even created a special ed

         19  complaint form to make sure that our teachers have a

         20  way of getting their stories heard. But most

         21  teachers who sent complaints choose to remain

         22  anonymous. While the union would like to see much

         23  tougher protection for whistleblowers, passage of

         24  this bill would be a step in the right direction.

         25  Our members would welcome the opportunity to be
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          2  responsible whistleblowers without fearing

          3  reprisals.

          4                 I can speak again. The high school in

          5  Brooklyn, boys and girls. There is a lot of problems

          6  happening and I know this is a strong principal. But

          7  not everybody's perfect. Here is an area in special

          8  ed where we want to help. He has threatened the

          9  teacher that this teacher will no longer have a job

         10  in September. And students who need services are now

         11  being dumped into the general ed classroom receiving

         12  even fewer services.

         13                 We want to do our job. We need your

         14  help. Thank you very much for this particular

         15  amendment to your charter.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you for

         17  your testimony. Clearly, those who are being

         18  threatened after this bill is passed, will have an

         19  opportunity to freely share their concerns at that

         20  table as you are doing now. While we now you are

         21  adequately representing them, they themselves now

         22  will have the opportunity to join you in

         23  representing the kind of concerns that they have.

         24  So, We are very sensitive and aware of how important

         25  this is. And we will try to move this along as
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          2  quickly as possible.

          3                 We have been informed by Mr. Ed Ott

          4  that due to his scheduling that he needs to be able

          5  to testify soon as possible. We want to take

          6  advantage of his expertise and his commitment to

          7  come down and join us at this City Council on this

          8  bill. So, With all due respect to the other members

          9  of the panel --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Mr. Chair, can

         11  we get a copy of Ms. Alvarez's testimony?

         12                 Ms. Alvarez, can you leave that with

         13  the Sergeant? Because you made a lot of interesting

         14  statements that we need to follow up on.

         15                 MS. ALVAREZ: I will repeat it again.

         16  I will be forwarding the testimony within the next

         17  week.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

         19                 MS. ALVAREZ: You're welcome.

         20                 MR. OTT: Thank you. Thank you for the

         21  courtesy of allowing me to speak. I found out about

         22  this hearing about two hours ago. I will also submit

         23  my remarks in writing sometime tomorrow.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Please identify

         25  yourself for the record.
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          2                 MR. OTT: My name is Ed Ott.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: We'll give you

          4  till Monday, Ed.

          5                 MR. OTT: I am the Public Policy

          6  Director for New York City Central Labor Council.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: We'll give you

          8  until Monday. Don't kill yourself.

          9                 MR. OTT: Monday?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: No problem.

         11                 MR. OTT: Thank you. First of all, I

         12  want to thank the Chairman for having this hearing

         13  and thank the Council Members for putting forward

         14  this particular Intro. This issue goes to the heart

         15  of what working people experience everyday. Any

         16  worker in this City who has tried to organize into a

         17  union has experienced the kinds of coercion that the

         18  people who came here to testify have in fact

         19  experienced. The truth of the matter is, is that in

         20  this country employers fire workers who attempt to

         21  exercise any basic right. They are fired with

         22  impunity. They are advised, employers are advised by

         23  Counsel to in fact use that level of intimidation up

         24  to and including denying somebody their livelihood.

         25  For working people, firing them is capital
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          2  punishment. It is punishment for an entire family.

          3                 I am surprised that anybody shows up

          4  here to testify at all if they work for a living.

          5  Because the level of coercion that exists in the

          6  work places in this country is unbearable and

          7  unfair. This law, while it goes to the heart of the

          8  Council's oversight responsibilities and your

          9  ability to function and make legislation, in fact,

         10  speak volumes about what the real relationship is

         11  between the power of employers and the power of

         12  workers. It is lop sided. Employers are aggressively

         13  indifferent to the day to day needs of their

         14  workers. They do what they want when they want it.

         15  And when workers attempt to stand up for themselves,

         16  they are in fact intimidated and coerced.

         17                 This particular bill is something

         18  that I think is vitally important. Because there is

         19  a lot of attention and we should drag this problem

         20  out into the daylight and make everybody aware of

         21  it. And we will commit to helping you do that. But I

         22  want to speak briefly to the penalty phase. Anybody

         23  who is an employer under contract with this City who

         24  intimidates somebody, who comes to this Council and

         25  attempts to exercise their right of expression and
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          2  to testify, that employer should be denied for life

          3  the ability to perform City work. The penalty if it

          4  is not that severe, it will have no impact.

          5                 If it is a City agency, the penalty

          6  should include loss of job for the head of that

          7  agency and the guilty parties and there should be

          8  pension penalties. They should not be allowed to

          9  claim good service. Because I can tell you, this is

         10  like spousal abuse. If they've done it once, I will

         11  bet you they've done it before and they will do it

         12  again. The penalties of this particular Intro should

         13  be expressed. They should be sharpened. They should

         14  be pointed. They should be clear. Because workers

         15  need that level of intimidation to their employers.

         16                 When I was old enough when we sat in

         17  these chambers trying to talk about whistleblowers

         18  and the experiences that they had, whole careers

         19  were thrown out the window by government agencies

         20  because workers wanted to pointed out something that

         21  was going wrong in that agency. It doesn't surprise

         22  me that people who were trying to get text books and

         23  chalk are considered a problem. When you live in a

         24  coercive work place where the employers power is no

         25  different than any absolute monarchy any initiative
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          2  is sedition. And we should understand that. Thank

          3  you for this bill.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          5  much for your testimony and the time and clearly the

          6  insight that you've shared with us. And we really,

          7  really would like what you have shared with us to

          8  put in writing and sent to us by tomorrow. No, I'm

          9  just teasing. Let me just say, Council --

         10                 MR. OTT: You're a much better

         11  employer.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: -- Sounds like

         13  there is an amendment in this testimony. Let's hear

         14  from the sponsor of the bill.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to

         16  say when we first, first envisioned this bill, it

         17  was in response to what happened to Mike's workers.

         18  Which were really very criminally focused and then

         19  as we moved on, remember that was UCP and there is

         20  other moments. Then we kind of went back into the

         21  draft and tried to make sure it covered intimidation

         22  that wasn't necessarily criminal in the sense of the

         23  statute not in the sense of what happened. I think

         24  your suggestions are right on. We need to go back in

         25  and amend it to make sure that we're even more
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          2  capturing of things beyond the pure so to speak, if

          3  you know what I mean, criminal matters which

          4  happened to Mike's workers which first brought this

          5  to our attention. So, we will following this

          6  hearing, work on making an A version of -- I say we,

          7  like I'm the lawyer, Matt, the lawyer, and Jeremy,

          8  will sit down to work to make this an A version

          9  which hopefully we'll be able to do swiftly and then

         10  move to passage of that.

         11                 It might be, I have no idea of

         12  making, it might have to be split into two bills if

         13  one is more contract focused. But if we have to do

         14  that instead of an additional to an amendment, we'll

         15  do that as well. We will want to make sure that we

         16  capture it that way. Both in City agencies and

         17  contracts. So, thanks for those suggestions.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Let me just say

         19  also, from my point of view, I'm appreciating more

         20  and more the urgency of the passage of this bill.

         21  Because this is sort of the heart of our work. If

         22  folks can't come to us, then it makes it very

         23  difficult for us to truly represent the best

         24  interests of the people of the City. Thank you very

         25  much for your testimony. Next, Mr. McGuire, do you
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          2  want to go next? It's up to you.

          3                 MR. MCGUIRE: Mike McGuire, Mason

          4  Tenders District Council. I'd like to say having

          5  been in this business for a number of years, the

          6  last thing you want to do is to follow Ed Ott's

          7  speaking. Such as my lot today.

          8                 I want to thank the Committee first

          9  of all and especially the Chair, Council Member

         10  Perkins and Council Member Quinn and Speaker Miller

         11  for taking up this very important topic. All of the

         12  members of the Committee here know me. They know I'm

         13  not shy about testifying before the City Council.

         14  You've all seen me testify any number of times. I

         15  don't fear for my personal safety when I do it.

         16  Until last year, I also never feared asking workers

         17  to come and testify on an issue. Now I kind of do.

         18  And the passage of Intro 128 would allay those fears

         19  greatly.

         20                 If you go to the City Council's

         21  official website and click on the link that explains

         22  the role of the Council, the first paragraph return

         23  reads, the New York City Council is a law making

         24  body of the City of New York. It is comprised of 51

         25  members of 51 different Council districts throughout
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          2  the five boroughs. The Council monitors the

          3  operation of performance of City agencies. Makes

          4  land use decisions and has sole responsibility for

          5  approving the City's budget. It also legislates on a

          6  wide range of other subjects. The Council is an

          7  equal partner with the Mayor in the governing of New

          8  York City.

          9                 What it doesn't say though is that

         10  the City Council is the grass roots of elected

         11  representation for the citizens of New York City.

         12  Council Members are the ones on the ground in the

         13  neighborhoods seven days a week, 365 days a year.

         14  Because of this closeness, the members of the City

         15  Council are the first person people turn to when

         16  they need help. That's what makes Intro 128 such an

         17  important piece of legislation.

         18                 Intro 128 stems from the absolutely

         19  appropriate outrage of Council Member Quinn over

         20  what happened to several workers employed by a

         21  company known as Rapid Demolition. Many members of

         22  this Committee are familiar with that case, as there

         23  is significant overlap between the members of the

         24  committees that did the lion's share of work on the

         25  Rapid Demolition case, the Committee on Oversight
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          2  Investigation and the Committee on Housing and

          3  Buildings. However, for those of you not familiar

          4  with the Rapid Demolition case, here's a brief

          5  synopsis.

          6                 Rapid Demo, its officers and

          7  management are bad actors. They are veritable poster

          8  children for irresponsible contractors. When we did

          9  just two days research into Rapid, we found mob

         10  ties, a history of failure to pay taxes, workers

         11  compensation premiums or prevailing wages, a

         12  propensity for setting fire to the buildings they

         13  were working on, scaffold collapses, overall unsafe

         14  work practices and then on- site supervisor who had

         15  spent time in federal prison for bribing a

         16  government official in relation to another

         17  demolition project.

         18                 Rapid was awarded the contract to

         19  tear down the Sanitation Department garage at 57th

         20  Street and the Westside Highway. We immediately

         21  began trying to have them removed from the job site.

         22  There were hearings in Oversight and Investigations,

         23  Sanitation and Solid Waste Management and Housing

         24  and Buildings Committees. There were press

         25  conferences at City Hall and at the site. There was
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          2  an investigation initiated by the Department of

          3  Investigations that supported the evidence brought

          4  forth by the union. Ultimately, the contractor was

          5  debarred from doing business with the City for a

          6  period of not less than five years. It is the good

          7  work of the City Council and its Speaker, Gifford

          8  Miller, that made that happen.

          9                 It was during the course of those

         10  City Council hearings that the incidents that

         11  spurred Intro 128 occurred. Several workers employed

         12  by Rapid Demolition were persuaded to come forward

         13  and testify at the hearings. My colleague, Director

         14  of Organizing for Construction and General Building

         15  Laborers Local 79, Chaz Rynkiewicz, can go into

         16  detail about these brave men. But in a nutshell,

         17  their livelihoods were threatened, their lives were

         18  threatened, their children lives were threatened.

         19                 At the time, Council Member Quinn

         20  directed her staff to accompany these workers to the

         21  Police to make statements in secret. It was this

         22  experience that lead to the crafting of the Intro we

         23  speak about here today.

         24                 The intimidation of workers,

         25  whistleblowers, or anyone testifying before the City
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          2  Council on any matter, be it controversial or not,

          3  should not and cannot be tolerated. The chilling

          4  effect that such intimidation would have on

          5  government operations would doubtless leave us in a

          6  situation where the inmates are running the asylum.

          7  Accordingly, I, on behalf of the six constituent

          8  local unions of the Mason Tenders' District Council

          9  and their 15,000 members, urge you pass Intro 128

         10  with all due haste. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         12  much. Next. Before you start, I just want to

         13  acknowledge two of the colleagues that have shown up

         14  to be a part of this hearing, Council Member Joseph

         15  Addabbo and Council Member Phil Reed.

         16                 MS. WEINERMAN: My name is Ilene

         17  Weinerman. I currently work as a Representative at

         18  the United Federation of Teachers representing

         19  United Cerebral Palsy of New York City. In my

         20  previous life, I was the Chapter Leader at United

         21  Cerebral Palsy at Lawrence Avenue in Brooklyn. From

         22  the time of our union election in August 2001, until

         23  my departure from the agency in August 2003. My job

         24  at United Cerebral Palsy was a school psychologist.

         25  United Cerebral Palsy is a non- public school

                                                            28

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  program for developmentally disabled children. This

          3  a publicly funded program that receives the majority

          4  of its money from City and State sources.

          5                 During the time that I was there, I

          6  was under constant surveillance by management which

          7  caused significant personal stress as well as

          8  disruption to my work life. Now I'll give you some

          9  examples.

         10                 Conversations between myself and my

         11  co-workers were monitored and in some cases

         12  interrupted by my supervisor. He would come over and

         13  conspicuously listen or even ask what we were

         14  talking about. In one instance, a co- worker was

         15  threatened with discipline merely for having a

         16  conversation with me during break time. My comings

         17  and goings throughout the day were under constant

         18  scrutiny. My supervisor would peer over my shoulder

         19  at the Xerox machine. Various members of management

         20  would follow me as I moved through the hallways

         21  particularly if I was observed carrying any type of

         22  papers or documents in my mind.

         23                 In one instance, a member of

         24  management fabricated various allegations about me

         25  including stating that I had arrived at a meeting
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          2  late. As a result, I was summoned to my supervisors

          3  office and forced to defend my behavior in order to

          4  avoid disciplinary action. On October 31, 2002, I

          5  was invited to testify at a City Council hearing

          6  about the on going labor dispute between United

          7  Cerebral Palsy and the United Federation of

          8  Teachers. Since the hearing was scheduled for 1:00

          9  p.m., I completed the necessary forms to leave at

         10  noon which was three hours before my regular

         11  departure time and attached a copy of the City

         12  Council invitation. Although request to leave early

         13  are routinely approved and I had plenty of accrued

         14  time available to me, this request as well as that

         15  of another staff member was denied. The reason given

         16  was that I was "needed at my job." As a result, I

         17  was unable to appear, answer questions and my

         18  statement had to be read into the record by a UFT

         19  representative.

         20                 Later that year, despite having

         21  assumed extra responsibilities at my work site, I

         22  received negative comments on my performance

         23  evaluation for the first time in 14 years at United

         24  Cerebral Palsy. At that time, my supervisor

         25  suggested to me that perhaps it was time for me to
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          2   "move on" since my priorities clearly lay

          3  elsewhere.

          4                 My remarks are intended to portray

          5  some of the links that employers will go to in order

          6  to preserve the status quo and prevent the truth

          7  from coming forward. I am hopeful that you will take

          8  these remarks into consideration as you undertake

          9  the process of deciding the circumstances under

         10  which individual rights can and should be protected

         11  in the work place. Thank you.

         12                 MR. RYNKIEWICZ: Hi, my name is Chaz

         13  Rynkiewicz. I'm the Director of Marketing

         14  Development for Laborers Local 79. We went after the

         15  Rapid Demolition Company. We wanted to get them

         16  thrown off this job over in the Westside Highway.

         17  When we would talk to the workers there, they were

         18  working half the time without permits. They were

         19  working against every safety law there is involved

         20  with demolition. This company was breaking every law

         21  in the book in the construction codes and the

         22  Department of Building codes. They were getting away

         23  with it. When they weren't paying the workers the

         24  right salary and we would talk to the workers, the

         25  workers seen that we were down there trying to get

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  things right. To have this company abide by the laws

          3  and we couldn't get that done. When we told them we

          4  could get them back pay, they doubted that there was

          5  any teeth to that. That we could get them that.

          6                 After a while, the company just

          7  altogether stopped paying the workers. When we told

          8  them to come forward, we could help them out, they

          9  were willing to do that. Immediately, when the

         10  employer got word of that, these workers received

         11  calls at their houses, on their cell phones. Their

         12  legs were going to be broken. Their families were

         13  going to be beat up. They might not make it home.

         14  Watch your back.

         15                 Now these workers still were brave

         16  enough to come forward and they did testify. But

         17  when they asked, can we help you? Can you guys help

         18  us? These guys are threatening to hurt us. We told

         19  them we could. We could go to the police. Nothing

         20  ever came of it. These workers are out there now. I

         21  apologize I couldn't track them down. The nature of

         22  undocumented worker in the construction industry is

         23  very transient. They travel around the country. They

         24  travel from job to job. Wherever they can find work.

         25                 If word gets out on the street that
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          2  contractors can get away with threatening workers

          3  and there is no teeth to it and they're not going to

          4  be prosecuted for it, they're going to exploit that.

          5  Because they know what laws they can get away with.

          6  They know what they can get away with and they

          7  exploit it to the maximum of their ability.

          8                 Workers also, when they hear they are

          9  getting threatened and potentially injured and

         10  nothing is done about it, they don't want to talk to

         11  anybody that is there to help them. We all here to

         12  help these workers. But, when word gets out that we

         13  can't help them, they're not going to come forward.

         14  As it is today, they don't want to talk us, the

         15  workers. They believe that there's nothing that can

         16  be done for them. For me, to honestly -- if a worker

         17  comes to me and says well, if I come forward and the

         18  boss threatens to hurt me, what can I do. I have to

         19  be honest with these workers. I say, we'll do the

         20  best we can to protect you. But this law would be an

         21  outstanding thing to have in place.

         22                 I want to be able to tell a worker,

         23  if this boss threatens you, this boss is going to

         24  jail. I want to tell him he's going to jail. I want

         25  to tell him the company is going out of business. I
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          2  want to tell him, he's going to pay. He's going to

          3  get into a lot of trouble if he threatens you. I

          4  can't say that today. I can say, well, maybe you

          5  might be okay. All I have is my word out there on

          6  the street talking to the workers. And I'm going to

          7  tell them honestly. If the City Council can give me

          8  the power to tell these workers that not only will

          9  you be safe, but your boss will be prosecuted for

         10  it, it would go a long way to improving the plight

         11  of these workers.

         12                 I want to thank the City Council. I

         13  just have to also echo what Mr. Ed Ott said, the

         14  severity of the punishment should be harsh. Because

         15  if it is a slap on the hand, these contractors do

         16  not mind the slip on the hand. They'll take a slap

         17  on the hand. If they threaten ten people and nine of

         18  them back down, it's worth the slap on the hand to

         19  them for the tenth person. We need them to fear

         20  having happen to them once. If the City Council

         21  could do that, that would be a great tool in our

         22  toolbox to help these workers. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         24  much. So, clearly all of you have supportive points

         25  of view about the legislation that's being proposed
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          2  to the extent that there's any exception that maybe

          3  we might want to strengthen the legislation to make

          4  it a greater penalty from a contracting point of

          5  view in terms of some actions against the contractor

          6  if it is about a contract. Or in terms of a greater

          7  penalty for the individual boss or whoever that does

          8  the harassment and intimidation. Am I correct? Does

          9  anybody feel different? Any member of the --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  I wanted to

         11  thank people who are testifying today and thank the

         12  Chair for bringing this to the fore, Chair Perkins,

         13  and Chris Quinn and my colleagues. But you're the

         14  courageous one to do this and I think that's the

         15  point. You shouldn't have to be courageous to have

         16  to come here. So you're like that movie whatever the

         17  name is, Breckenridge (phonetic). You're people like

         18  that with the courage to stand up and it's a matter

         19  of human dignity, I believe. And it is also a matter

         20  of -- obviously, it's a matter of feeding your

         21  families as well and not being intimidated.

         22  Hopefully, you will be among the groups that cause

         23  this to happen. And a lot of people after this will

         24  be able to thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you,
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          2  Council Member Nelson. Council Member Reed.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

          4  Chair and special thanks to all of you have come.

          5  Michael McGuire always seems to be on the right side

          6  of issue. If I see him at the witness table, I'd

          7  figure I better -- and then I make sure my name was

          8  on this piece of legislation and it is. So, I'm

          9  hopefully --

         10                 MR. MCGUIRE: Actually, shouldn't you

         11  say, Council, I'm usually on the left side of

         12  issues?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, there we

         14  go. Okay. You're right. I do think and I thank you

         15  for having this hearing. We are trying to do our

         16  job. I'm sure this is about a lot of other

         17  intimidations that you're facing. But we have tried

         18  to take the Council to another place and we need the

         19  trust of the public. And we need the confidence that

         20  if they come and tell the truth about what is

         21  happening in their work place in the community that

         22  they live in or whatever it is, that they're not

         23  going to face retaliation certainly in that

         24  particular instance, but in almost any other arena.

         25                 I don't mean to diminish the

                                                            36

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  importance of what you're saying. But this is the

          3  tip of the iceberg around so many things that we as

          4  elected officials particularly in the legislative

          5  branch are trying to examine to make this a more

          6  livable City. Thank you for putting this together. I

          7  was looking through this and I see that the penalty

          8  that we've discussed imposing is a $750 fine and

          9  imprisonment not to exceed one year. I presume

         10  that's at the discretion -- it's automatic $750.

         11  It's not up to. Right? It says a clear fine of $750.

         12  So, the Judge doesn't have discretion in that.

         13                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: (not able to

         14  hear)

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay. I would

         16  just ask the witnesses and you may not feel it

         17  appropriate to answer at this time, do we feel that

         18  would get the point across? Or is that a slap on the

         19  wrist?

         20                 MR. RYNKIEWICZ: If I may address

         21  that. The point that you made, everything we try to

         22  do to get Rapid off that job, nothing worked until

         23  we came to the City Council. And then things were

         24  done and I want to thank the City Council for that.

         25  I should have mentioned that earlier. But to go back
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          2  to the Rapid Demolition job, Phil Schaub (phonetic),

          3  the person on the job who was responsible for

          4  running this job day to day, was orchestrating the

          5  threats and everything was running through this

          6  individual, was a two- time convicted felon. So, to

          7  him a threat of a misdemeanor was nothing. It would

          8  mean nothing to him. The threat of a felony would be

          9  the threat of life imprisonment to him. Because he

         10  was already twice convicted for things he did in the

         11  demolition industry. A third conviction, a third

         12  felony conviction in the demolition industry, he was

         13  gone for life. That would have changed his own tune.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Was this a City

         15  contract?

         16                 MR. RYNKIEWICZ: It was a City

         17  contract.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I thought we

         19  weren't -- well, I guess if you've done your time,

         20  I'm not sure how these people get contracts from the

         21  City in the first place.

         22                 MR. RYNKIEWICZ: This individual

         23  didn't get the contract. It was given to somebody

         24  with a clean record, but he was running the show.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: He was
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          2  supervising the site.

          3                 MR. RYNKIEWICZ: Exactly.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I see.

          5                 MR. RYNKIEWICZ: Exactly. But he was

          6  the one orchestrating the threats. So, it wouldn't

          7  want to orchestrate threats if the threat of a

          8  felony conviction was imminent. Now, I understand

          9  Councilman's Perkins, if you were to move the bill

         10  forward rapidly, not to use the pun rapidly, but in

         11  a timely manner, I don't know jumping from a

         12  misdemeanor to a felony, maybe a lower felony would

         13  slow that process down. But I would like to suggest

         14  that. Because as somebody that works on the street

         15  in the construction industry, the difference between

         16  a felony and a misdemeanor is dramatic.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you for

         18  your testimony. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you

         20  Council Member Reed. It is our interest in moving

         21  this forward rapidly. No pun intended as you said.

         22  We're going to now call on our next witness and as I

         23  indicated before, the members are going back and

         24  forth from this hearing to that hearing. Oh, I'm

         25  sorry. I'm sorry. Thank you, Council Member Addabbo
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          2  for reminding me that you had a question. Thank you.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Mr. Chair,

          4  thank you very much. I appreciate it. The panel

          5  here, I appreciate their time and testimony today.

          6  Again, the freedom from threats and intimidation is

          7  obviously critical and to the core of what we try to

          8  do. Like we've said here at City Council and

          9  critical to the oversight that we have. We're hoping

         10  to eliminate that. Chaz, correct?

         11                 MR. RYNKIEWICZ: Yes.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: To your

         13  point, I do have a question to the Committee and to

         14  the staff. To use your example about the Rapid

         15  situation where there was a number of -- the offense

         16  might have been made to a number of workers. The

         17  penalty here is $750. Is that for each offense or is

         18  that for one job? Because we may have many workers

         19  who have been intimidated on one job. So is that

         20  $750 per job or $750 per offense depending on the

         21  number of workers?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: It would be per

         23  offense, not per job.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Okay. That

         25  would help. Obviously, if there's ten workers at a
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          2  job and all who are being intimidated, that's $750

          3  times ten or what have you. I think we would

          4  obviously have to pass this legislation to see how

          5  effective it is and need be if possible increase the

          6  penalty. A lot of times we do pass legislation and

          7  then just see how it goes. But I think the penalties

          8  are of utmost importance. I would also ask the staff

          9  to add my name as Chair of the Civil Service and

         10  Labor Committee, to add my name as a sponsor. I

         11  would appreciate it. Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: No question

         13  about it. That will be done.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: The question you

         16  raised regarding the interpretation of the fine, the

         17  punishment, makes us realize that we will have to be

         18  more explicit. So there can be no ambiguity.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: No question.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: And it can be

         21  clear to the culprits exactly what's at risk when

         22  they intimidate and that itself may be offensive..

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO: Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chair.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you.
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          2  You're name shall be added along with mine for that

          3  matter. Thank you again panel for the good work you

          4  do and for the courage you've had to show to be

          5  here. We would hope that heroes would not be

          6  required to testify before the City Council. This

          7  bill will go a long way to ensure that we hope.

          8                 For the next panel, we're going to

          9  call on Geneva Butts, Darryl Chalmers, Deidre

         10  Pullans, John Campbell, Betty Lumbley, and of

         11  course, Brandon Ward.

         12                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Good

         13  afternoon. Please raise your right hand. Do you

         14  solemnly swear or affirm the testimony you're about

         15  to give is the truth, the whole truth and nothing

         16  but the truth?

         17                 MS. BUTTS: I do.

         18                 MR. CHALMERS: I do.

         19                 MR. WARD: I do.

         20                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         21  Could you before testifying state your name and who

         22  you are affiliated with? You can start on the left.

         23                 MS. BUTTS: My name is Geneva Butts.

         24  I'm a retired New York City Manager.

         25                 MR. WARD: My name is Brandon Ward,
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          2  I'm the President of the New York Chapter of Blacks

          3  in Government.

          4                 MR. CHALMERS: I'm Darryl Chalmers.

          5  I'm the Vice President of Chapter 21 for the Fire

          6  Protection Inspectors for the New York City Fire

          7  Department.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Before you

          9  begin, thank you for being here, as I indicated in

         10  my opening statement, one of the catalyst for this

         11  hearing was a prior hearing that we held I believe

         12  on the 29th of March in response to the fact that

         13  there was discrimination in the management levels as

         14  well throughout City government. We did not see

         15  blacks in City government at the level that was

         16  appropriate. In the course of that hearing, there

         17  were individuals who testified on being intimidated

         18  and harassed and threatened and they in defiance of

         19  those threats, nevertheless, testified. It reminded

         20  us of the importance of this legislation. We

         21  appreciate your presence here as a second time for

         22  some of you from the last hearing we had. With that

         23  in mind, you may begin.

         24                 MR. WARD: Good afternoon Chairman

         25  Perkins and members of the Governmental Operations
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          2  Committee. My name is Brandon Ward and I'm the

          3  President of the New York City Chapter of Blacks in

          4  Government and also a Project Manager with the New

          5  York City Department of Transportation.

          6                 I'm joined by several current and

          7  former employees who have willingly volunteered to

          8  testify before this Committee regarding the subject,

          9  Are you Sufficiently Protected If You Speak Out? In

         10  a February 20th, article titled EEOC, For African

         11  Americans at Work, It is Still About Racism in the

         12  Diversity Inc, the chair of the Equal Employment

         13  Opportunity Commission, Cari M. Dominquez stated

         14  that race discrimination too often hinders the

         15  progress of African Americans. In fact, of 80,000

         16  charges that were filed with the EEOC (that's at the

         17  federal level), in 2003, the highest percentage, 35

         18  percent was on the basis of race.

         19                 In this context, one cannot ignore

         20  the inimical responses and intimidating effects of

         21  the previous administration referring to the duty

         22  and the administration, retaliatory practices.

         23  According to the New York City Employment Equal

         24  Practices Commissions 2000 annual report, between

         25  1994 and 1998, complaints about employment
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          2  discrimination increased 89 percent. Moreover,

          3  according to the Comptroller's Office, the average

          4  annual cost to the City for resolution of

          5  discrimination complaint is $1.7 million.

          6                 The recent $26.8 million settlement

          7  reached by the New York City and the Latino Officers

          8  Association is not reflected in this cost to

          9  taxpayers. Curiously, one of the worst problems

         10  noted in the complaint noted by the Plaintiff's

         11  counsel, Richard Levy, was officers became outcasts

         12  in many precincts when they complained.

         13                 In the Department of Transportation,

         14  a Director was demoted and removed from the

         15  directorship for reasons other than incompetence or

         16  misconduct simply because he allegedly disagreed

         17  with a decision. The alleged reason given for his 20

         18  percent pay reduction, adjustment and removal was

         19  that it's in the best interest of the agency.

         20                 Clearly, what has become increasingly

         21  evident to me is that people with power do things

         22  simply because they can. Evidence of this is seen in

         23  hiring, promotions and discipline. Unfortunately,

         24  data regarding the ethnic makeup of agency's

         25  disciplinary actions are not kept.
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          2                 On balance, it is our view that this

          3  bill or Intro No. 128 is moving in the right

          4  direction. After all, when skills are seemingly

          5  lacking, the instinct to punish is evident. Evidence

          6  of this was reported when an employee was arrested

          7  for writing a letter to the Staten Island Borough

          8  President criticizing him for closing a community

          9  center in a largely black neighborhood. I reference

         10  the sources of that.

         11                 In an environment where there is no

         12  accountability or consequences for managerial

         13  actions, managers literally have the power of life

         14  and death. Power corrupts absolutely power corrupts

         15  absolutely. I will reflect to Ms. Butts for her

         16  remarks.

         17                 MS. BUTTS: In the continuation of my

         18  remarks made at the previous meeting, I was removed

         19   -- I wasn't removed. I was reassigned after 26

         20  years of working at HPD. My level was reduced from a

         21  management level three to management level two and I

         22  received a 20 percent decrease in salary because of

         23  what I was told was a reorganization.

         24                 I'll just go through my remarks.

         25  Under retaliation, African Americans who complain of
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          2  being left out of the equation in terms of

          3  promotional and education opportunities were

          4  demonized yet similar complaints followed by whites

          5  regarding the same were considered legitimate. I

          6  received the demotion in management level and a 20

          7  percent decrease in salary. After 28 years of

          8  service, my pension is substantially decreased

          9  because of the suspect reorganization and the

         10  failure to inform me that I could seek a position

         11  elsewhere to maintain my highest management level

         12  salary which would have given me a pension based on

         13  my final salary, which of course was lowered because

         14  of this demotion.

         15                 Even after retirement, my lump sum

         16  payment was decreased by nearly 50 percent because

         17  the agency reversed the decision on approval of use

         18  of overtime that had been taken eight years prior to

         19  my retirement. Because they decided to take -- to

         20  change that after I retired, even though I had a

         21  meeting with the Deputy Director of Compensation and

         22  Benefits before I retired and there was no issue

         23  about the time. So, even after I'm gone, I'm still

         24  being punished.

         25                 White males progress from non-
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          2  managerial to assistant commissioner in less than

          3  two years and from a management level one to

          4  management level five in five years, yet as it

          5  turned out, I never progressed in my level because I

          6  wound up -- I retired at the level that I started.

          7                 Reorganization has been used as the

          8  tool to circumvent the civil service process and to

          9  deprive career civil service of opportunities to

         10  higher level positions. In 1987, Andrew Cooper who

         11  was my former boss, who hired me, was reassigned

         12  from his position as Director of MIS. His vacant

         13  position was upgraded to an assistant commissioner.

         14  And then a second assistant commissioner position

         15  was created within the division to which white males

         16  were hired.

         17                 Similarly, in 1998, approximately ten

         18  years later, Geneva Butts was reorganized as a

         19  position of Director, demoted to entry level

         20  management position of 25 years previously and

         21  reduced in salary. The unit name that I was

         22  responsible for was changed. But the functions

         23  remained the same. While G. Butts's managerial

         24  position was eliminated, a new position of Director

         25  of Legacy Systems in the same department was

                                                            48

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  created, and a younger white male was appointed.

          3  This opening was not publicized to make it possible

          4  for other qualified persons to be considered.

          5                 In terms of vacancies, in many ways

          6  discrimination occurred in procedural ways, such as

          7  failure to post vacancies, posting of such detailed

          8  requirements that were desired that is obvious the

          9  candidate is already selected and it's just a

         10  formality to do this posting. Use of management

         11  prerogative to appoint persons with little or no

         12  qualifications even when there is a person with

         13  unquestionable credentials available.

         14                 I have never been interviewed for any

         15  position at HPD for which I applied or expressed an

         16  interest. I think that's very interesting after 28

         17  years. This complicity of the oversight agencies,

         18  the good old boy, girl network, allowed the agency

         19  to appoint consultants to positions to which they

         20  had less experience and knowledge than existing City

         21  employees. DCAS supported the 20 percent decrease in

         22  my salary even though it was in violation of their

         23  own personal service bulletin on calculating the

         24  salary of a manager who had been reassigned to a

         25  lower level without cause. Because the DCAS person
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          2  who came to the last meeting with the Commissioner,

          3  because that person supported HPD's reduction, I had

          4  to bring an Article 78 and pay an attorney to get

          5  them to follow their own bulletin in order to

          6  calculate my salary after the reduction.

          7                 I think that something needs to be

          8  done very seriously. I had submitted with the prior

          9  testimony a comparison chart just to show the

         10  difference between how I as a black manager was

         11  treated and how younger white males, less

         12  experienced, less education were on the fast track

         13  as I just stayed on the track. I started in 1972 as

         14  a level two. In 1980, when my salary was $32,000,

         15  there was another person on my chart, I have him as

         16  a white male, who entered the City as a Community

         17  Associate at $16,000. That person is the person who

         18  was hired in an Assistant Commissioner level job at

         19  $86,000 and I never progressed beyond the director

         20  level.

         21                 There is another young white male in

         22  1988 who was the Computer Assistance Manager level

         23  one who was hired in entry level at the top of the

         24  scale of a management level one which is $61,000.

         25  This is his first job. Since 1988, he has progressed
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          2  to a level five at $118,000 in the same department

          3  in which I worked. I retired at a salary lower than

          4  what my highest salary had been in 1998 when the so-

          5  called reorganization occurred. Thank you.

          6                 MR. CHALMERS: Hello, my name is

          7  Darryl Chalmers. I'm the Vice President of Chapter

          8  21 for the Fire Protection Inspectors for the New

          9  York City Fire Department. I'm going to speak on

         10  this bill of Intro 128 sponsored by the Council here

         11  which I believe is very important for a lot of City

         12  workers and including what the young lady just spoke

         13  about here earlier.

         14                 In the Fire Department, you have Fire

         15  Protection Inspectors, approximately 300 of us. We

         16  go out and we inspect buildings. We do inspections

         17  for the fire works units and we do a lot of things

         18  for the Department. In fact, since we've been on

         19  board with the Fire Department, fires have gone down

         20  because of our inspections. Lot of the uniform

         21  officers, they depend on a lot of work that we do.

         22  They come and speak to us exactly and find out

         23  exactly what do we do as far as this code, as far as

         24  this law is concerned. They are very concerned with

         25  that.
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          2                 The problem was is that we weren't

          3  being treated right. So, me being the Vice President

          4  and my partner Julius Scalaro (phonetic) who is one

          5  of my delegates, we spoke out about management and

          6  how the Department was ignoring us. And because of

          7  that, the Department basically was trying to

          8  retaliate against us. Assumingly, they would tell

          9  Jules and I, we couldn't do the vacates anymore. We

         10  were on the vacate desk for years. They told us not

         11  to process and do the vacates anymore. They moved us

         12  off that. I was working very heavily on Mark Green's

         13  campaign. I was seen in the paper with Mark Green a

         14  lot. The Department accused me of drinking which I

         15  never drank before ever in my life. My grandfather

         16  made sure of that. They did a lot of retaliatory

         17  things to us. I mean if the inspectors speak out,

         18  especially me as a union, if I speak out about what

         19  the Department has done as far as ignoring us. They

         20  wanted to give us yellow shirts for the Fire

         21  Protection Inspectors. I fought them in a management

         22  meeting and they gave us blue shirts. They said, Van

         23  Essence (phonetic) said no. We can't give them

         24  yellow shirts. We'll give them blue.

         25                 The Commissioner who we were having
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          2  problems with, what happen is that you had uniform

          3  in charge of fire prevention at one time. Chief

          4  Jerry Barber (phonetic) was the Chief of Fire

          5  Prevention. They moved Chief Jerry Barber out and he

          6  won some civilian commissioners. The uniform

          7  personnel was never a problem. They treated us very

          8  fairly. It was the civilian personnel that came

          9  under Giulian's management that's been there for

         10  years. They're the ones who came in with this

         11  negative attitude and said, okay, the uniform is

         12  out. We'll take over. We'll handle this. Their

         13  attitude towards the inspectors in the Department

         14  has been horrible.

         15                 There was a situation where one of my

         16  guys got upset and I took him outside and calmed him

         17  down. When I got back upstairs, the Commissioner

         18  immediately because of my role working with the

         19  inspectors and fighting management said, I want

         20  Chalmers to go on the field immediately. I want him

         21  out the building. I said, what was the reason for

         22  that? They couldn't give an explanation. But they

         23  immediately, they always do retaliatory stuff to us

         24  in the Fire Department as far as the Fire Protection

         25  Inspectors are concerned.
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          2                 They may do it with the uniform

          3  officers too. I don't know. Because I know Peter

          4  Gorman, I'm pretty close to those guys too. But the

          5  Fire Department with the management and I wouldn't

          6  say it's the Mayor so to say. It's the same people

          7  that are still there. That's been there for almost,

          8  that's going to be 12 years soon. That is the

          9  problem. The mind set of the management is horrible.

         10  They believe they have a mindset that, hey, we can

         11  do what we want to do. Nobody is going to do

         12  anything to us.

         13                 The fine of $750, I  believe is too

         14  minimal for them. Some of these Commissioners are

         15  making $125,000. The fine to me personally should be

         16  at least $5,000. Let them get a message. Let them

         17  know. You cannot do this. We're all human beings.

         18  We're workers. We're here to serve the public, and

         19  that's what we're here for. But to speak out about

         20  things that are done wrong in the Department, when

         21  we really should be sitting at a table talking about

         22  it and discussing it. But they don't even want to

         23  sit down and discuss it with you. They would rather

         24  say, no, don't speak out against it. So, we're going

         25  to come against you.
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          2                 I believe the bill is a great bill.

          3  And I believe that they should least have this bill,

          4  the fine for $750 -- to somebody with their

          5  salaries, it's like a slap on the wrist. I believe

          6  that bill, the fine should at least be $5,000

          7  minimum. All right. That's all I've got to say.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Let me again

          9  thank you for your testimony and your efforts to

         10  make this City's a better work place for workers.

         11  Especially those who are African American and of

         12  color. Especially for all workers who may be

         13  threatened, harassed, intimidated because of their

         14  proposed or actual appearance before this Committee,

         15  this Council. That's the key here. And I want to

         16  make sure the folks on the stand that once you have

         17  determined that you need to appear before this

         18  Council to give testimony, is when this law begins

         19  to protect you.

         20                 In other words, I just want to help

         21  you understand, all of us to understand that there

         22  is a distinction that I think is important because

         23  if you don't intend on attend a hearing or if you

         24  don't actually attend a hearing, then there is

         25  another law in place. The so- called whistleblower's
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          2  law that takes effect. This law takes effect

          3  particularly in terms of  making sure that workers

          4  who intend on or actually do participate in hearings

          5  here will not be intimidated, harassed, threatened

          6  and, in fact, if that should happen, as you have

          7  done now, then the law would have severe

          8  consequences for those employers that actually carry

          9  that out. Are you clear? Does anybody have any

         10  thoughts about that aspect of the law or that

         11  understanding of the law?

         12                 MR. CHALMERS: I have a clear

         13  understanding of that. You know what it is, all of

         14  us who are here in this room and the panel that

         15  spoke before us, it's just that we work on our jobs

         16  and we're here to take care of our families. But at

         17  the same time, it is the intimidation that you get

         18  from management. Even though, I commend you, the

         19  Council for being here because I know you have a lot

         20  of other meetings going on. But you did take the

         21  time and effort to have this meeting. The fact that

         22  this room is not full is because a lot of people are

         23  intimidated and afraid to speak up. You have a lot

         24  of that. I don't know what the background of most of

         25  the Council people, but if you worked with the City
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          2  before or worked on any job, if you seen the same

          3  situation where a person spoke out, you've seen them

          4  being retaliated against. Because we're all at that

          5  age of adulthood where we happen to have to see

          6  that.

          7                 The problem is, is that people are

          8  really afraid to come and speak out. Now, I know the

          9  Fire Department knows I'm here. I know they're going

         10  to want to do something. And the bad thing about it

         11  is that most of the people in upper level in the

         12  Fire Department that know me personally, they know

         13  they would love me to work in any one of their

         14  offices. But because I'm having problems with

         15  certain management in the Department, they have to

         16  shun themselves to the point where we can't even

         17  really say hi to Darryl. Even though they would

         18  always come to speak to me all the time. Because I'm

         19  an upstanding person when it comes to my job and

         20  working for the City.

         21                 That's the main justice that you have

         22  to put this bill out to push it. And you have to

         23  push the fines out to be stiffer. Whether it's vice

         24  versa. Because the employers and the management in

         25  the City government right now, their mind set is
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          2  that you don't tell us anything. This is what we're

          3  going to do. Don't try to back talk us or do

          4  anything like that. That's it or else. You're just

          5  going to suffer. That's all I've got to say.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: I know you all

          7  were here at the last hearing that we had. Has

          8  anybody had any adverse threatening punishment from

          9  the last hearing? Those of you who are still

         10  employed?

         11                 MR. CHALMERS: No, I haven't had any.

         12  I just got whispers that I'm a troublemaker. That's

         13  all. Just stuff like that. That's all I get.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Council Member

         15  Nelson.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chair. Thank you for coming. I was curious. Did you

         18  ever go to, either one actually, go to EOC and lodge

         19  a formal complaint about this? I'm sorry, Ms. Butts,

         20  did you say you were working for how many years, 28?

         21                 MS. BUTTS: Well, I think one of the

         22  reasons that I was removed is because I did file a

         23  complaint in 1987 when my previous boss was removed.

         24  I filed a complaint at that time when the Assistant

         25  Commissioners were appointed and I think that
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          2  started --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Was marked as

          4  trouble?

          5                 MS. BUTTS: -- Yes, this retaliation

          6  against me. So, by getting me who was a Civil

          7  Service Manager and because many years of experience

          8  that I had and that just shut down the department,

          9  nobody else did anything. Because they figured if

         10  they could get me, they could get anybody.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Sure. There

         12  were obviously negative results. Mr. Chalmers, when

         13  you were -- they accused you of drinking? Was there

         14  an eyeball observation or they breathalyize you?

         15                 MR. CHALMERS: No, they didn't do

         16  anything. What happen was -- because I was so heavy

         17  with the Mark Green camp at the time and they

         18  figured if Mark Green had won that these people were

         19  going to be removed. These certain managers. You

         20  know when --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Sure, sure.

         22                 MR. CHALMERS: -- New administration

         23  comes in, heads start to roll. Because we worked for

         24  the inspectors, we were having problems with them. I

         25  was representing them as the Vice President with the
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          2  union. I guess this manager just wanted to make an

          3  accusation lie, I believe he's a drunk and he

          4  drinks. I don't drink. I've never drank.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Right, your

          6  grandfather, I remember.

          7                 MR. CHALMERS: I can explain that.

          8  It's a joke in my family. What happens is my

          9  grandfather is from Ireland. My last name is

         10  Chalmers. My grandfather is from Ireland, so he's

         11  Irish. He married my grandmother from Ireland. What

         12  happen is that people always jokes about Irish

         13  drinking. So, my grandfather made sure, he said

         14  you're not going to drink. I asked him for a beer

         15  when I was young, he said taste this. And I tasted

         16  it and after that I never wanted to drink. So, I

         17  drink soda.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: So, your mind

         19  set --

         20                 MR. CHALMERS: Yes, he put it in my

         21  mind said not to drink.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: It's

         23  particularly offensive to you to be accused of this.

         24                 MR. CHALMERS: Yes, yes. I took that

         25  very offensive for them to even make a statement
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          2  like that about me.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: But they never

          4  breathalized you. It was strictly --

          5                 MR. CHALMERS: No, they never did.

          6  It's just a statement. But that statement was to --

          7                 MS. BUTTS: Demonize.

          8                 MR. CHALMERS: -- Demonize.  Thank

          9  you, Ms. Butts. That statement was to demonize me

         10  because I was politically --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: It sent a

         12  message.

         13                 MR. CHALMERS: -- Moving forward with

         14  Mark Green's camp. and stuff like that. They wanted

         15  to put out a statement to anybody possible. Well,

         16  Chalmers is a drinker. He drinks. You know, that

         17  kind of stuff.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: It's a world

         19  of difference. I'm glad you cleared that up for me.

         20  Thank you.

         21                 MR. CHALMERS: You're welcome.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: I'm sorry you

         23  went through this problem. All of you.

         24                 MR. WARD: Just an observation.

         25  Primarily what we're dealing with in my view is
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          2  managerial culture. And it's just like to use an

          3  example of the blue wall or the police cultural, you

          4  don't talk out. I mean sometimes people just do

          5  things because that's how we do it. And anyone that

          6  breaks away from that norm is subject themselves to

          7  ridicule and to be ostracized. The same principle I

          8  think applies to agency head and management. If the

          9  signal from City hall is sent that certain behaviors

         10  are not going to be tolerated because,

         11  unfortunately, the trickle-down effect, it always

         12  comes back to the taxpayer by way of law suits. We

         13  end up paying the bill for bad behavior.

         14                 I think the greatest enforcer has to

         15  be administrative enforcer coming from the agencies.

         16  That's why it's critical in my view that the

         17  penalties that are going to be accrued against

         18  anyone behaving irresponsibly in this way should be

         19  severe. Because you need to send a signal. There is

         20  a similar thing that occurs with the Norfield Act

         21  (phonetic), I mean that's a little different in one

         22  sense. But just in general principal is that if an

         23  agency practices discrimination, it should come from

         24  that agency budget as opposed from the general fund.

         25  It should come out of the agency. Let that agency
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          2  suffer. Unfortunately, it is not practical. Because

          3  the delivery of services impacts everyone.

          4                 In terms of what needs to be

          5  occurring is there needs to be some critical

          6  examination of how agencies are governing the

          7  cultural by which decisions are made. It is notable

          8  to me, for example, this week in my agency, DOT

          9  hired the Chief Operating Officer. I guess they're

         10  setting him up for a coo, Chief Operating Officer

         11  for the ferries. As an insider, the issue is not

         12  management. The issue is a cultural. How do you

         13  change the cultural of the work place that would

         14  become a much, much more productive and the

         15  retaliation and all the other stuff that goes on.

         16  The beat goes on.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

         18  much. I appreciate your testimony. I appreciate the

         19  service that you are providing to our City. And

         20  we'll take under serious advisement the

         21  recommendations you make with regard to the

         22  penalties that would be appropriate to make this

         23  bill as effective as possible. We hope that you will

         24  continue your valiant struggle to make this a better

         25  work place for all workers and one in which workers

                                                            63

          1  COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENTAL OPERATIONS

          2  feel free to protest, to disagree without

          3  necessarily being threatened, harassed or punished.

          4  This bill will hopefully go a long way towards that

          5  end.

          6                 MR. CHALMERS: I'd just like to make a

          7  statement if it's possible because the Council has a

          8  lot power and I feel that sometimes that the

          9  Council, if you guys would take the time and come to

         10  different agencies and visit that agency. I mean

         11  it's just a suggestion. Sometimes it lets the

         12  Commissioners see, well you know the City Council is

         13  coming to visit the Fire Department. They're coming

         14  to visit DOT. They're coming down. They just want to

         15  take a look at see how the work place is. That would

         16  send a message also to some of the management that

         17  we've got to do the right thing. Because City

         18  Council is coming here. And they want to see exactly

         19  or hear some of the complaints. Maybe not even just

         20  to hear complaints.

         21                 Because of the power you have, just

         22  to show your face sometimes may give a message to

         23  certain people to say, you know something, we've got

         24  to change our attitude. I mean, I know City Council

         25  you come down and I've meet you, Mr. Perkins at DC-
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          2  37 one time which was a pleasure. It's good when you

          3  come. But sometimes it's good to show your face at

          4  the agencies. And let the agencies know that, hey,

          5  look, we're here. We govern the City. We want to

          6  make sure that the government is doing the right

          7  thing. That's all I've got to say.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON PERKINS: Thank you very

          9  much. I appreciate the suggestion. I think it's a

         10  good one. Thank you so much for your, again, your

         11  participation, your testimony and your continued

         12  good work for the people of City of New York.

         13                 I just want to conclude this hearing

         14  by first thanking all the witnesses once again for

         15  their support, their testimony. I think it has been

         16  valuable not only with respect to the proposed law

         17  in particular, but in terms of how that law can be

         18  enhanced and be more effective. As my colleagues and

         19  witnesses have pointed out, this Council cannot be

         20  effective if witnesses are intimidated from sharing

         21  their views without the threat of intimidation or

         22  punishment when they go back to the work place.

         23  Whether that work place be a public agency or

         24  whether that work place be some place where the City

         25  has a contract cannot be tolerated, will not be
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          2  tolerated. This law upon being enacted and

          3  implemented, we believe will go far towards

          4  addressing that problem which clearly is one that

          5  exists within the City at this point in time.

          6                 I want to thank the sponsor,

          7  Christine Quinn, the primary sponsor of the

          8  legislation. I want to make sure that the members of

          9  the Committee, in particular, Mr. Addabbo and myself

         10  are included as prime sponsors of the legislation. I

         11  want to make it clear that the Administration was

         12  invited at this hearing and decided it would not be

         13  in attendance. We will, I believe, shortly attempt

         14  to have another hearing, perhaps the final hearing

         15  on this legislation. At that time, we will be

         16  looking forward to hearing from the Administration

         17  and everyone else pro or con before we make our

         18  final decision, a final vote of this Committee on

         19  the legislation. With that in mind, this hearing is

         20  adjourned.

         21                 (Meeting adjourned at 3:30 p.m.)
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